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PIONEER WOMEN OF CLEVELAND—WEST SIDE,
CUYAHOGA COUNTY.

. Hefore 1505 the Indians laid claim to
at part of the Reserve lying west of
he Cuyahgoa River. That year a
made at Fort Industry,
ear Sandusky,. In favor of the grantees
©f Connecticut. In 1807 the fourth draft
‘of the lands of the Western Reserve
was made,
" Bamuel P, Lord and others drew the
township of Brooklyn, which the same
Year was gurveyed Into lots and offered
for sale, In 1817 Josiah Barber, who
owned a large tract of thia land, In or-
der to Induce people to settle here
‘opened an office, and offered bullding
lots For sale at & moderate price; as a
result a new town soon began to spring
up, which for a time threatene to
eclipse the village of Cleveland, on the
‘enst side of the river, and In five yvears
to such dimenslons had the town grown
‘that it became necessary to replace the
old-time ferrles with a bridge, which in
1822 was bullt.
- In 1838 the village of Brooklyn be-
‘cAame an Incorporated city, known as
the City of OChlo. At this time property
‘Was higher than on the East Side, and
EB.%E.D 1837 speculation raged Hercely.
The center of enterpri=se was on the

&t2, where lumber yards and manufac-

es sprang into existence and flour-
Ished. A large tract known as the
- Buffalo Company's allotment, situated
©n each side of Maln street, at that
time the principal thoroughfare lay in
valley at the base of the hills, and

extended from the foot of Hanover
llrat»et on the west to the river on the
. The famous "bridge war" had Its or-
lgin in this company’s bullding a cov-
&red bridge over the river at the foot
of Columbue street, adjacent and con-
Venlent to thelr property, demanding
A toll on It, and applylng for a charter,
with the provislon that no other bridge
#should be built within five miles of It,
thers belng at the same time an In-
Junction on the float Bridge at the foot
of Detrolt gtreet.

Judge Joslah Barber and hls second
wife, Sophia Lord, came from East
Haddam, Conn., bringing
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1807—1850.

four chlldren, Epaphras, Sophia, Jeru-
sha, and Harrlet. They traveled in a
large wagon drawn by oxen, making
the journey in six weels.

They bullt a large, roomy log house
at the top of a long, tiresome hill on
the corner of the present Pearl
street and Franklin avenue, ‘In
1824 they moved Into A fine, new brick
manslon, where liberal entertalnment
prevalled.

The judge and his wife were especial-
ly fond of Philander Chase, the firsc
bishop of Ohio, whose parochlal labors
in this section of the country made him
a frequent and welcome visitor.

Judge Barber was elected the first
Mayor of Ohlo Clty; he fllled the office
sutisfactorily, especially on one occa-
glon, when he was called out of bed
at midnight to read the riot act to the
bridge marauders, who, notwithatand-
ing this precaution, blew up and par-
tially destroyed It.

In 1836 Judge Barber went back to
Hebron, Conn., to bring to his Western
home his daughter by his firat wife,
Abigall (Mrs. Robert Russell), who had
been left A widow at an early age, her
pwo daughters, Sophia Lord and Char-
lotte Augusta, and his slster, Mras. Lu-
¢inda Jones. -Mrs, Russell came of good
old stock, and brought with her the cul-
ture and refinement of her New Eng-
land ancestry.

Thia journey which, elghteen years
before, had taken Joslah six weeks to
accomplish, now occupled ten days, so
rapid had been the Improvement Iin
travel,

Mrs. Russell and her famlly settled
In Columbus block, & monument In
brick, which stands a conapicucus land-
mark, around which cluster the fond
memoriea end pleasing assoclatlons of
many who lilve over again in Imagina-
tion the days when “‘companies” were
glven here and

TEA PARTIES HELD

which rivaled In elegance of deport-
ment and propriety of conversation the
stately receptions and chattering after=
noon teas of to-day.
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On one occasion Miss Sophla, who
had received six months of vocal tuition
in Hartford, belng prevailed upon to
sing, gave the following specimen of an
extremely fashionable song of the aday.
also a Boston importation:

iss Myrtle is going t0o marry,
MWhntr:. number of hearts she will
brealk;
There's Lord George, and Tom Brown,
and Sir Harry,
All dying of love for her sake.

*Tis a match that we all must approve,
Let the gossips eay all that they can;

For, indeed, she's a charming woman,
And he's & most fortunate man.

Yes, Indeed, she's a charming woman,
She studied both Latin and Greek,
And "tis said that she solved a problem

In Euclid before she could speak.

Had she been but a daughter of mine,
I'd have taught her to knit and to
EewW,
But her mother, a charming woman,
Couldn"t think of such trifles, you

know.

This block still remains in good con-
dition, at the top of Detrolt street hill,
although the character and style of its
occupants have materlally changed in
the s=ixty wyearas that have intervened
glnce its first habitation. In 1825 mis-
alonary socleties were held here for the
fitting out of boxes for the frontier.
In 1832 was held here the first sewing
aociety In Brooklyn village, for cloth-
ing the poor, and on January 4, 1§36, 3t
John's Protestant Episcopal <Church
was here organized, and servicea held
on successive Sundays.

The same vyear the corner-stone of
the church was lald, corner of Church
and Wall streets, and the building was
soon in process of erection. Judge Bar-
ber was largely instrumental in ralsing
the necessary funds, and the tale is an
oft-told one that he went solleiting
around through the day to pay off the
workmen at night. Following out the
lilne of heredity, his great-granddaugh-
ter, almoet a ploneer herself, clalms to
have fallen helr to this office, and for
the same institution. 8t. John's ls the
oldest church bullding in the ¢lty.

Sophia L., Russell (Mre. Danlel P.
Rhodes) Is ‘well known in social clrcles
for her easy bearlng and graceful man-
ners, for unstinted charity and wide
hospitality. Her husband died Iin 1872,
having made for himself a wide reputa-
tion a= a succesaful business man, of
indomitable energy and untiring per-

—

severance. He was a8 ploneer in the

coal and iron ore trade, as In those days
wood was the universal Tuel, Ilake

steamers belng the only coal consumerg,
His wife was his constant companion,
?nd ever attentive to his physical com-
ort.

Her travellng experlences throughout
this and all the countriem of Europe,
her long sajourn In Egypt, and her Nlle
trip have made her a most entertain-
ing conversationaliat. Her children are
Auvgusta (Mra, M. A. Hanna), Robert
Rhodes, James Rhodes, the historian,
and Fannje (Mrs. Willilam MecCurdy),
who dled some years ago.

Charlotte Russell ((Mrs. Uriel 0,
Hatch), whose vivid recollections of the
olden time have afforded much of inter-
ezt for this sketch, tells of the merry
sleighing parties, through long stretches
of dense forest, to some country hotel
where hot suppers awalted ravenous
appetites, and where the music of the
fiddle kept time to the tripping feet of
the dancers in the Virginia reel and
minuet. Elizabeth Tyler (Mrs. Willlam
Morton), a friend of hers, a

MISCHIEF-LOVING SPIRIT,

added life and gayety to many a party.
Another friend, Miss Eliza Benton, of
a frolicsome turn, in order to vary the
humdrum monotony of a woman's
sphere, frequently donned male attire
and went about, to the fright and ex-
treme scandal of her stald and decorous
nelghbors.

Mr. and Mrs. Anson 8mith, from Con-
nectieut, and thelr daughters, Cornelia,
Virginla, Georgianna, Estelle, and Jo-
sephine, living on Detroit street at
this time, were pleasant, cultivated peo-
ple; another young lady friend was
Julia Dyer (Mrs. Augustus E. Chiids).
who died in England, at Galeton House,
on Wincheater road.

Around the name of Aunt Lydia
Phelps fond memory clings of ploneer
A, B, Ca and A, B, Abs.

Miss Harrls, one of the fine teachers
of the early days, met with a sad fate.
While making her quill pens her knlfe
slipped and cut a nerve In her hand,
which eventually ended her life. She
was slster to-Mrs. Lucy Wilson, who
lived on Church street.

Lydla Elizabeth Bilgelow (Mrs. John
B. Denlson), from Utica, N. Y., came to
the West Side In. 1826, Her last resi-
dence was on Franklin avenue. Her
daughter, Mrs, ¥F. W. Pelton, an ener-
getle woman, was for many years 8
member of the Dorcas Soclety, and 2
now one of the supporters of Bethan¥
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- Home,

tlons,
Mrs. Franclis A. Burrows, daughter of

both useful benevolent institu-

"'_‘..'-ﬁnarie Lord, of East Haddam, Conn,,

~game in 1838. Her husband, who was
- Mayor of Ohlo City In 1837, and agaln In
1842, was a polished gentleman of the
~old school. His wife was a capable
“helpmeet, qulet and reserved in manner,
. hr;l-ter. Hope Lord, married Thomas
Hurd.

~ Ann Goodrich (Mrs. Charles Winaslow)
‘was born amongst the Berkshire Hills,
" Mr, Winslow was a descendant of
- Kenelm Winslow, who came from Eng-
‘land In the Fortiune, the second boat
~after the Mayflower. He was a retired
"gentleman of means, and belonged to
‘the Buffalo L.and Company. She was
& beautiful woman and a delightful
~entertalner. One of her distinguished
vigitora was Danlel Webster,

~ Horace Greeley was also a reciplent
of her hosapltality. Another welcome
"guest was Blshop McIlvane., The un-
_%vprrtunnte panic of 1837 crippled Mr.
- Winslow's resources, which he had sup-
posed were unlimited. Their daughter,
‘Luey Ann, married Mr. Cornelius
Lanasing Rusaell, 'whose great-great-
grandfather established the town of
‘Lansingburg, N. ¥. In the old colonial
home hang the portraits, painted at the
‘beginning of the century, of Mrs. Rus-

#ell's great-grandfather, and great-
Ereat-grandmother.

Mra. Abigail Lord Randall, after
‘the death of her husband and
‘children, came from New York
eity, making her home with her
‘brother and his wife, Mr. and Mrs.

"Richard Lord, who llved In aristoeratic
‘8tyle, and whose beautiful garden and
conservatory of tropical plants were
‘the admiration of all

. Mre. Lord was a devoted church wo-
mAan, as was her sister, Mrs. Randall,
“Who gave the lot on which St. John's
‘Eplscopal chapel now stands.

_ As there were no seed stores, she dis-
‘tributed neat little packages of flower
‘Beeds among her friends, Frult trees
Erew here, and of these four pear trees
8Ll remain.

Deliverance Smith, with her husband,
Phineas Shepard, came in 1816 from
‘Huntington, Pa. Her reputation as a
‘wonderful nurse was widespread. They
built and occupled the frame house, No.
342 Pearl street, still standing, the

FIRST AND OLDEST

dwelling In this locality. Here was or-
&anjzed November 9, 1816, Trinity par-
ish. In 1828 Trinity Church building
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was completed on Seneca street. The
names of its West Side Incorporators
were Josiah Barber, Phineas Shepard,
and Charles Taylor.

William Shepard, grandson of Deliv-
erance and Phineas, married Jeannette
Pearson, who came from 8St. Albans,
Vi, in 1838, An extract of o letter writ-
ter by her to another girl friend In Ver-
mont in that year shows to gome extent
:.ihe status of the City of Ohio at that

ate:

“Dear Cousin: I have an opportunity

to write you, and have so0o many things
to say 1 hardly know where to begin.
1 attend school where there are thirty
pupils taught by Mr. and Mrs. Samuel
Fox, from Colechester, Conn. 1 suppose
yYou would like to know about Ohlo City.
There are three schools, eight stores,
eight public houses, five houses of wor-
ship. Lake Erie bounds it on the
north, the Cuyahoga River on the east,
Brooklyn center on the south, and
Rockport on the west."
- Mrs. H. A. Hurlbut, of Rutland, Vt.,
was by birth a Sheldon. The Sheldon
family were among the early settlers
of Deerfield, Mass.,, and were prominent
in colonial and revolutionary annals,
Her ancestor, John 8heldon, built and
lived in the old historic Indlan house
not later than 1680. During the Deer-
fileld massacre his wife was killed b¥
the Indians, and the rest of the family
were taken captive to Canada and re-
deemed within a year or two. Mrs.
Hurlbut's maternal ancestor was
Thankful Barnard. Mr. and Mra. Hurl-
but came to Ohlo Cify in 1835. They be-
longed to the “0Old Settlers' Association.”
Miss Jane Johnson, who "“married the
brother of Mr. H. A. Hurlbut, is a wo-
man of active benevolence, now living
on Euclid avenue.

Rosamond Harris (Mrs, Levl S8argent)
came with her husband from Plainfield,
WN. H., in 1818, 'They bullt and occuplied
the second frame house on the West
SBide. She was also Its firet Abolitionist
and first temperance woman, and sald
of those times that it was easler to get
a gallon of whisky than an equal
amount of rain water.

Jerusha T. Sargent (Mrs. Epaphras
EBarber) in 1818 was taken from school
in Troy, N. Y., at fourteen years of age
to accompany her father and mother to
the Western wilderness. Her *“finish-
ing" consisted in one painting lesson,
and as far as her school life went

THE CHAPTER WAS CLOSED.

For a gir]l of her fine tastes her lot In
thesze rude wilds was a hard one. BShe
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married and settled on a farm on the
South Blide, then a forest, now densely
peopled. Here gshe made up to some
extent for her lost educational opportun-
itles, as she sald, sewlng till she grew
slck, then studying to the wee small
hours of the morning. To her gentle,
maotherly care often fell double respon-
slbllity In nursing and caring for the
sick, for in all new countries there were
more men than women. She spun raw
silk, for which, however, there was not
much market, there being no looma In
this part of the country on which to
weanve It.

In her long, useful life of eighty-three
years she never lost Interest In general
affairs; reviews, magazines, and espe-
clally new books were her greatest
pleasure. At eighty-two she passed
through the golden gates of Chautau-
qua with the graduating class, having
taken a four years' course of study.

At #ilghty-three she passed away at
the beautiful home of her daughter,
Tootle Barber (Mrs, A. M. McGregor),
on Long Island Sound, and was buried
from Hast Cleveland, the home of her
other daughter, Sophia (Mra. James Mo-
Crosky).

Elizabeth H. Sargent married Mr.
George L. Chapman asd settled in the
home in which her children are now
living, on Pearl street. She was an en-
ergetie worker among the poor, A com-
forter to the sick and forlorn. Her
husband was for many ¥years senlor
warden in 8t. John's Church. It was
a custom when making neighborly vis-
ita to carry small gifts as tokens of
friendship. It is related of Mrs. Chap-
man that on starting out on one of
these expeditions she looked around for
the usual something to carry, and, spy-
ing a batch of dough set to ralse on the
hearth, took that to her friend, who
presently had it in her oven baking
into erlsp, brown loaves of bread.

In her son's possession s a letter
written by her to her mother-in-law in
15840, the days of Whigdom, from which
are taken the following extracts perti-
nient to the times and political sltua-
tlon:

“General Harrl=on came over on Mon-
day morning and took breakfast with
mosat of the gentlemen here at the Pearl
Street House™ (now Franklin House),
“gpposite ours, at half-past 6. At seven
a roomful of ladies were assembled to
express by thelr presence thelr gratifi-
cation at being permitted to see the
man to whom they owed s0 much, We
were all honored with an Introduction
and a hearty shake of the hand. At 8
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o'clock he left in a packet for his hum.
ble home and amid the cheers of thouy.
sands.”

In the same letter her husband writes:
“Money's scarce. ‘Wheat 18 Afty-six
cents a bushel, corn twenty-flve cents,
cats twelve and one-half cents, pota.
toea ten cents, beef two and one-fourth
cents a pound, and welghing the fora
‘quarters only, butter elght cents, cheese
three to four cents,. 80 you see we can
llve on a small amount of money pro-
viding we are economlical.”

The postage on this letter was twen-
ty-five cents.

Julia Sargent (Mrs. Robert Selden),
sister to Mrs. Barber and Mrs., Chap-
man, lived on a farm for many years,
8he was a fine housekeeper, also had g
gEreat taste for reading, and was con-
versant with the topics of the day. Her
family moved Into town and occupied a
house on Pearl street, where her daush-
ter, Miss Susie Selden, now resides. Her
other daughters were Julia (Mrs. Frank
FEddy) and Miss Rosamond.

A splendid housekeésper was Mra, Mor-
ria Jackson (Flora L. Shepherd), and a
very superior cook. A frlend once said
of her culinary art that he would know
one aof her loaves of bread If he went to
keaven. They were always of the same
size; an exact calculator, If she planned
to bake forty or fifty or

ONE HUNDRED BISCUITS,

her dough made exactly that number,
not more or less. As In her day schools
were not available, she was taught st
home by private teachers.

Her husband's pride and pleasure was
his garden, lald out Into squares. Veg-
étables were raised In the center of
these and in the borders were dear,
sweet, old-fashloned Mfowera, snap
dragons, Canterbury bells, pom-pom
chrysanthemums, tullps, and May and
June clove pinks.

‘Mr. Morris Jackson and Professor
Jared P. Kirtland were charter mem-
bera of the first hortleultural society
of Northern Ohlo. ‘Mrs. Jackson had
two stepdaughters, Julla (Mrs, John H.
Sargent) and Allce (Mrs. W, E. Stand-
art), who graduated at the Misses Lud-
low's school for young ladies, on the
present Ontario street. Both of these
ladies have been recently widowed. Af-
ter Julta’s marriage with Mr. Sargent
she became an extenslve traveler, gath-
ering a valuable collectlon of curios, in
which Is a painting two hundred and
filfty yvears old,. When a little girl her
father took her sleighing and stop
at an Inn In Miamiasburg, twelvae miles
from Dayton. There she met an old
French soldler, who had been one of



leon's famous body guard. He
d her a wound received In the
memorable battle of Austerlitz and the
- crosg of the Leglon of Honor he
wore, and wept like a child when he
talked of his beloved general.
- Mrs. Standart, her sister, is an agree-
companion, a& good mother, beloved
nd respected by her sons, who have
. reached man’s estate. Her husband was

the eldest son of Needham Standart.
~  In the neighborhood of St. John's
" Church lived Mrs., Rogers, a widow,
from New York State, who, possessing
fine businesg faculties, was enabled by
‘her push and energy to bring up her
‘daughters well. BShe was one of the
‘first purchasers of the sewing machine
of the West Side, paying for it $100. One
of her daughters married Ellhu Peck,
prominently connected with marine in-
‘terests. Another married George Wat-
téerman, a builder of canal-boats, who
amassed a gnoderate fortune,

- Mrs, . W. Jones (Sarah Rhodilla
Teéenny), of Orwell, Vt., at the age of
aevenleen, while wvisiting a ther at
Amhberat Corners, was soliecited to teach
‘school, the educational opportunities
of the Bast having been far in advance
of those in the new State of Ohlo, She
took charge of a school, numbering sev-
&nty-three pupils, requiring a range of
studies from the alphabet to advanced
science., Meeting the prosperous young
shipbullder, George Washington Jones,
& friendship was formed which resuit-
ed in marriage in 1838,

In 1841 Mr. and Mrs. Jones became
residents of Ohlo City, occupying a

nse on Columbus street, then re-
£arded as Its Ilpading thoroughfare.
Subsequently they removed to Church
itreet, and later to Pearl street, where
the homestead has been a leading land-
mark for thirty years.

. Mr. Jones was for many vears the

leading shipbullder of Cleveland, and a
Ploneer in the construction of the great
‘Bteel vesgels of to-day.

wThEIr daughters are Rosanna (Mrs,
_ and Adah (Mrs. Bonnell).
Mrs. Jones, though domestic In her
ﬂhﬂa - 18 public-spirited. At the |ncep-
N of the Woman's Medical College
'h&t me one of Its trustees, and for
Wenty years was on the managing
board of the Protestant Orphan Asy-
lﬂm.‘nd She was also prominent in church
s Sunday school work, and to-day
'lr.t‘ Worthy poor never leave her door
thout practical ald and words of en-
nﬁnent. 3
8 Nancy Jackson, a sister of Mor-
1‘-;,1: and Tower Jackson, married Buell
Tnn. the brother of G. W. Jones.
heir home, for those days, was a
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Frandsome brick house at the corner of
Pearl and Washington streetss The
family moved to Buffalo, and later to
Milwaukee,

Thelr daughters are Mary (Mrs. Celan
Hendee) and Helen (Mrs. Lemuel Ells-
worth), both living In Milwaukee.

One of the active supporters of the
Franklin Methodist Episcopal Church
e Mrs., George Presley, whoge malden
name was Susanna Tayior.

She tells that in 15843 all south of
Franklin avenue was pasture land, cov-
eread with scrub oaks, blackberry
bushes, and other wild brushwood.

One lone farmhouse stood near the
Monroe Street Cemetery, ooccupled by a
famlly by the name of Roe,

Mrs. Presley's only daughter, Maria
(Mrs, Barney Eldridge), llves in Belvl-
dere, Tl

Other nmames well remembered dn
early days were Mr., and Mrs, Thomas
Burnham, Dr, and Mrs. Sayles, Mr. and
Mr=, Horatlo Barstow, Dr. and Mrs,
Tilldon, 'Mr. and Mrs. Sanford Lewls,
Mr. and Mrs. Hoyt.

Mr. and Mrsa. Stephen N. Her-
rick—Mrs. Herrick was a Brooks—
came from KEast Haddam, Conn.,
in 1832, and bullt A& home on De-

troit street road. now Detrolt street,
which atill remalns; here were educat-
ed thelr daughters, Nancy (Mrs. Rich-
ard Russell), and Eleanor (Mrs, Belden
Seymour). They attended the private
school kept by Mr. and Mrs, Fox., Thelr
way Lo school lay through a long strip
of woods, and the path and riveway
wound in and out among stumpe of
treas, - '

Mrs. Herrick's sister, “Aunt Susan'
Brooks, Is remembered as a very sweet,
interesting woman.

Mrp. Sophia Newton came from Col-
chester, Conn., with her daughter about
1838. In 1841 they removed i Oberlin,
where Mary Sophia studied and com-
pleted her classical coursze. She mar-
ried Reverend Willlam Platt, also a
Eraduate from the same college and
theological seminary. At the same time
Mrs. Sophia Newton was married o
Dr. Titus Chapman; they went to -
peer, Mich., to engage In home mission
work, Mrs. Platt dled at Ypsilanti,
Mich., aged seventy-two. After Dr.
Chapman’s death which occurred In
Oberlin, Mrs. Chapman came to the
West Bide, and resided with a son and
daughter at No. 141 Clinton street. She
was elghty-four at the time of her
death. Her daughter-in-law, Mrs W,
H. Newton, and her daughter, now Mrs.
C. F, Dutton, ecame in 1837.

Ursula Connover (Mrs., Charles Tay-
lor) came from EBchpectady, N. Y., in
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1818, 8he was a stanch Presbyterian,
her husband a devoted Episcopalian.
Bhe entertained the minlsters and eld-
ers of her denomination, and he kept
open house for hla., Fregquent religlous
pervices, Sunday school and other gath-
erings were held In the east rocom of
their home.

Thelr farm of one hundred acres ex-
tended from State street to the end of
the old riverbed on & plateau overlook-
ing the lake. The house, No. 386 Detroit
Btreet, still stands. Mrs. Moses Luf-
kin and Mra., Danlel Denlson, their twao
daughters, llved for many yvears in thias
house, with its big, old-fashioned fire-
place and wide stone hearth, on which
the hunter deposited his game, then
most plentiful.

Affa Lowell (Mra, S8tephen Standart),
afterward Mrs. Danle]l Tinker, was
born in Hartford, Conn., and came to
the West Bide in 1849, bringing . her
daughter, Affa Lowell Standart, who
married Dewltt Clinton Taylor.

Thelr home was bullt in the garden
of the old homestead., After some years
they moved to Clinton street.

THIS8 AND TAYLOR STREET

recelved their famlily names, Mrs Tay-
lor is & graceful, pretty woman, a kind
nelghbor, and devoted mother, who
lives to bless her household.

Mra. Needham (Naoml Wilbur) Stan-
dart, was gentle and motherly, very
hospitable. Her husband was Mayor
of the "City of Ohlo" In 1840 and 1841.

The house in which Mrs., Needham
dled, a large, roomy mansion, is still in
excellent condition. In her time it was
surrounded by spaclous grounds, on
which flowers and fruit, trees grew in
rich abundance:

Before the war, and for some years
afterward, the Needham Standart man-
8lon was e geene of many brilliant
evening partles which were the general
-ubrj:ct. of conversation for weeks after-
ward.

Tradition records that the cupola of
the house sheltered many a poor col-
ordd fugitive, previous to their trans-
portation to Canada and to freedom.

About 1842 Mrs., Davis, her husband,
and two daughters, Elise (Mrs. Nelson
Banford) and Helen (Mrs.. Ebin Coe)
moved to Ohlo City. Thelr residence
on Detrolt street, which at that time
was quite an Imposing one, was after-
mward the scene of a brilllant wedding.
In the large upper apartment called the
ballroom, Miss Chloe Lewia, sister to
Mrs. Davis, who came with the famlily.
married Mr. Joseph Redington. Th+
banquet was lluminated with tall wax
candles In sllver and glass candlesticks,
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and served by colored walters from one
of the large steamboats plylng between
Cleveland and Buffalo.

The Redingtons lived for many years,
{till Mr. Redington's death) on Frank-
lin avenue, adjoining the reservoir,
They had four Interesting daughters
the eldest of whom are Eleanor (Mrs,
Carter, of FPhiladelphia) and Helen
(Mrs. Henry Adams). Mr. Redington
was a fine musiclan, and led the ging-
lng for three generations of Sabbath
school children in the Congregationalist
church. His widow resldes In Toledog,
His sister, Mrg. Julia Redington Fur-
rfwn_ g well known In West Side cir-
oles,

Mre, Cynthia Lewls, Mrs. Davis'
mother, followed, and lived with her,
dying at the home of Mra. Redington,
ninety years of age.

‘Mr. and Mrs, Davis lived to celebrate
thelr golden wedding. She was a strong
character, though qgulet and domestic.
By her words of wisdom and good
sense, eEhe made and retained enduring
friendships.

Mr. Nelfon Sanford's mother, Mrs.
Daniel Sanford (Maria Brouwer, of
New York State), when first coming,
lived in the Milis house, on Detroit
street, and later bought and dwelt in
the house known as the "Lamb place,"
on the northeast corner of Detrolt and
State streets, now completely covered
with a huge, unsightly rink.

Mre. Sanford is very old, and has out-
lived her husband and all but one of
her family of flve sons.

During the war of the Revolution An-
nle MeDole married Daniel Buxton, and
went from Vermont Lo settle in Buffalo.
While there the British soldlers burned
thelr house, destroylng all their posses-
slons. A chest sunk into the earth con-
talning & few valuables was lost, and
a little bag of money left on the bureau
was forgotten in the haste of flight.
Homeless they fled to Ohlo, settled on
the east slde of the Cuyahoga Rliver,
lived there two years, then moved to
the West Side, putting up the first
frame house on the one hundred-acre
Taylor farm. In this house in the
month of May took place the wedding
of their deughter, Miss Cordelia, to
Mr. Seth H. Sheldon, a prosperous
drugglst, At the suggestion of one of
thelr merry guests, they were

MARRIED ON THE ROOF,

over the dining-room, under the shim-
mering stars. “It goes without saying”
that the ploneer atmosphere of those
days was of A purer guality than ii=s
present emoky deacendant, and present-
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ed no obstacle to roof parties. An ode
written for this occasion by Mr. Na-
thaniel Bennett is still preserved by her
for whom it was written.

- This frame house was replaced before
jong by & more pretentlous brick dwell-
ing, from which the Buxton and Ehel-
don families afterward moved to make
room for Mr. and Mrs, William H. Van
Tine, who made this arrangement a
conditlon of their settling on the West
Side. This (house still remains, Mr,
Sheldon bought a lot on Franklin ave-
nue, and put up a substantial house,
where his.widow and their daughter,
Miss Ellen Shelden, still reside. Her
other daughters were Anna (Mrs. Hol-
loway) and Sarah (Mrs. Horace Allen).
Mreg, Sheldon is the only living charter
member of the First Presbyterian, now
First Congregational Church, of the
Wesat Side.

One of the earllest and best doctors
was Dr. Benjamin Sheldon, brother to
Seth, who came with an invalld wife,
and his sister, Miss Sarah, who taught
the first free school In this section.
Bhe sickened and died while at her post,

~Mr. SBheldon filled the position of May-
or durlng the wears 1850, '51, and '52.

His daughter, Mrs. Burdlck, was a
woman of lovely character,

Mre. Sheldon’'s sister, Eliza Buxton,
married Mr. Alvin Turner, who built
‘the house which still stands, corner of
’ili'ﬂ;a.shington and Hanover streeis, and
ater occupied by Captaln and Mrs,
Elias Sims. ¥
__Another physician of good reputation
was Dr. C, E, Hill, a graduate of Yale,
His wife was a most estimable woman,
ever ready and willing to be of use to
her friends, capable and Intelligent.
They built in a corn field, no other
house in sight. He filled the position of
clerk of the city for ten years, after
retiring from a successful practice.

Always a temperance worker, promi-
nent in the woman's crusade, born to
brave persecution and hardship, Mrs.
f. A, Cannon belongs in the front rank
Of earnest pioneers in the cause of hu-
manity, as well as for early settle-
ment in Ohio City, to whienh she came
in 1822, She was born In Auburn, N.
Y., in 1820, s seventy-six years of age,
though presenting the appearance of a
Inuch younger woman. She has lived
In Cleveland fifty-ive vyears. She
Btarted a Sabbath school, out of which
Erew a church,

en Hiram College was first started
8he and her husband contributeda 2500
t0 assist the work. Mrs, Cannon is the
only charter member of the Diseiple

Church now living., Jane Johnston was
married In Northfield, 0., to David
Pollock, and settled on the West Side
in 1846, She was A woman who en-
endeared herself by her lovely Chris-
tlan gqualities ‘to a large circle ot
friends.

Maria Tappan (Mrs. John Martin),
an early member of the Diselple Choureh,
died in her home, which still stands on
Pearl street.

Mrs, B. A. Hinsdale, wife of Professor
Hinsdale, now of Ann Arbor, Mich.,
was also an early member.

Miss Betsy SBessions moved with her
parents from York State In 1836 to
Summit county, Ohlo, croassing the Cuy-
ahoga River on a ferry, and driving up
West River street past the Chapman
House, standing then a3 now on Pearl
street, overlooking the Flats.

The whole valley presented a pleasing
picture of meadow, wood, and swamp
land, covered at that season with

BEATUTIFUL PINK BLOSSOMS.

She returned to live here permanently
in 1838, Upon her marriage with Mr,
Alfred Davis (well remembered as Cap-
tain Davlis), she went to housekeeping
on Church street, in the chambers of
the house aeccupied by the Fouts family.
She visited the sick and afflicted, and
spent much time in nursing and in the
performance of kind deeds, Bhe was
an active member in what was known
a8 the "Benevolent BSoclety of OChio
City."”

Charlotte Merrell married Mr. David
Griffeth at Oak's Corners; they moved
to Rochester, then about 1836 came to
Ohio City with their three children,
Mary (Mrs., Starkweather), John, and
Nathaniel, and while -bullding their
home on Washington street, at the brow
af the hill, boarded in the Pearl Btreet
House, which later took the name of
Franklin Housge, and still stands, a
relic of old-time presperity.

Mrs, Griffeth was a humanlitarian in
the broadest sense of the word. The
woman who helped In her household
cares had come to her door wilth a six-
months iInfant in her arms. As she was
slightly colored It was suspected that
she was a Tugitive slave fleeing from
the South. She remalined with the fam-
ily, and for years would give no account
of herself. She was known only as
Ann., Her infant grew to manhood,
went to the war, at last missed roll-
call, and was heard from no more. Mrs.
Griffeth died of cholera, an epidemie
raging at that time, on the morning of
August 14. Ey night the house was
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thronged mnot alone with frlends and
neighbors, but with the many poor ben-
eflelariee of her bounty. She was a
fitting helpmeet for her husband, who
for a long time was junlor and senlor
warden in St. John's Church.

In connection with religious matters
may be mentioned the pond at the back
of the Griffeth house frequently used by
the Disciples for dlpping the members
of their persuasion. As In frosty
weather the ice sometimes formed an
inch thick on the . surface, the bath
then was a cold 6ne, and the walk
home, with frozen, stiffened garments,
i severe test to Christlan fortitude,
Mr. Griffeth was elected Mayor in 1847,

Elizabeth Krom (Mre. Thomas Dixon),
an intellizent_talker, with whom It i=s
A pleasure to converse, came In 1847
from King=ton, N. Y.

Although of pure Yankee descent and
horn in Maasachusetta, Miss Gratia M.
Wilecox became a Buckeye of the
staunchest kind. When quite wyoung
=he removed to Brecksville, O., making
the journey in an ox team with her
parcents, Josiah and Ablgall Wilcox. In
1837 she came to Cleveland, married Mr.
John Beverlin, who, In 1848, waa Mavor
of ''the City of Ohin." For a time they
resided om Detroit street hill, overlook-
Ing the river, a mosat pleturesgque site;
then built a pleasant home on the cor-
ner of State and Clinton streets, where
was celebrated thelr golden wedding.
She was a patriotic woman, and de-
voted to the interest of her church. Her
daughter, Julia, married Mr. Charlea
Stanart, a son of Needham and Naoml!
Stanart.

Mre. George Tilebhout and her two sls-
ters, Mary and Margaret Wilson. of
Whaterloo, M. Y., came In 1843 Mrs. Tie-
bout's three daughters, Margaret, Mar-
tha, and Frances, alao ploneers, were re-
fined, Intelilgent, and benevolent wo-
men,

Mra. Charles L.. Rhodes came with her |

husband to Franklin Mills (now Kent)
in 1833: afterward to Cleveland, West
Slde. While not a very early ploneer
here she was the

INTIMATE FRIEND AND ASS0CI-
ATE

of most of those whose names appear
in this history. Her house was on the
spot now occupled by 8t. Malachl's
Church, and was the center of hospl-
tality. All works of charity appealed
to her sympathy. Her daughters are
Catherine (Mr=. Palmer) and Abble
{Ml";- Addl=on Hough), both of Cleve-
and.

Miss Mary Eleanor Hurd, of Middle
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Haddam, Conn., married Mr. Horaces
Foot, & Yale graduate of brilliant liter-
ary attalnments. They settled in Ohig
Clity In 1836. He practiced law, and wag
after some wears elevated to the benech,
a position he malintalned with extraor.
dinary ability for twenty years.

Eunice Shepard Plerce (Mrs. Jesse
F., Taintor) came Iin 1834, and resided on
Clinton street. She was soprano singer
in the Congregational Chuch, strongily
interested in its welfare; her husband's
warmest sympathizer, always second-
ing his business projects, which were
in the banklng and mercantile llne. Hes
was one of the organizers and found-
args of “The Soclety for Savings,” on
the BEast Side. Mr. and Mrs. Taintor
were passlionately fond of flowers, and
a0 great was his succeas In thia line
that friends would joklngly assert he
had only to put a stick the ground to
see A handsome rose In full bloom.

Mrs. Taintor, the mother of seven
children, was a typlecal woman; tall,
graceful, lovely, possessed of energy
and tact.

Mary Harrlet Palmer (Mrs. Norman
C. Baldwin) was born at Goshen, Litch-
fleld county, Conn. On her wedding
day she started for the Wew Connecti-
cut, went to Hudson, 0., then, with her
husband and child, moved to Ohio Clty-
in 1830 or 1831, where Mr. Baldwin be-
came largely interested In real estate.
In 18347 the family moved to the East
Side, occupying a home on Euclid ave-
nue. Mrs. Baldwin was the mother of
nine children, four sons and five daugh-
ters, five of whom are still living. She
became & member of St. John's Episco-
pal Church, and was ever faithful to
her Christian duties. Bhe was pecullar-
ly reticent and unassuming, with a
qulet force of character, gentle in her
manner, and wise In her counsel. Nonsa
who knew her Intimately could fall to
appreciate her.

In all the relations of life as a wife,
mother, friend, and neighbor, she was
without reproach. She died In 1867 at
her home in Cleveland.

Amelia Chollette, born at Kingston-
on-Hudson, married Henry Hale, an
artist, of Stonehouse, Gluocestershire,
England: soon after moved to Cleve-
land (West Side), settled on Washington
atreet, later on Franklln avenue, where
they resided over forty years. HShe was
an earnest member of the Methodlst
Church, an exemplary Christian char-
acter, Iliberal in benefactions to thif
poor and dlstressed, She loved flowers.
modest and retiring, never very strong.
she found her constant pleasure in her
home life. She departed thia life Jun®
14, 18956. She left one son and three
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,m;rritd dauzhters, well known In =0-
‘pjal and musical circles,

" Mrs. F. R. Elliott (Sophia Hopkins)
was a liberal entertainer, whose house
was always open for guests. She was
‘not afrald of work, and was a notable
‘cook. Her husband, a landscape gar-
‘dener, wrote the well-known KElllott's
frult book. He set out trees on thelr
‘peautiful place, on Detroit street, near
the Nickel Plate crossing, which are
now growing and flourishing.

~ Mr, and Mrs, Ephraim Wilson reslded
‘on Pear] street with thelr two children,
‘Mra, . Wilson was  skillful with  her
needle, and did exquisite embroldery
.on her children’'s clothes, which was the
admiration of her friends.

Mre., Mary Newell Castle was born
in Charlotte, Vt. After finishing her
education In Middleburg and Burlington
"ghe came to Ohlo Clty in 1838. She mar-
ried In 1540 William B. Castle, a young
man of sterling character, who In after
years nobly fulfilled the promise of his
youth. In 1843 he became president
of the Cuyahoga furnace, and so sklll-
fully managed Its affairs as to win for
it a leading position among the lron
{industries of the country. He wasa the
last Mayor of Ohlo Clty before (ts con-
solidation with Cleveland, and its flrat
Mayor afterwar  (1854). His accom-
plished wife was a fitting helpmeet In
‘all his public career. Both were In-
tensely interested in the werfare of St.
John's Church, of which for some time
he was senlor warden. He was also
prominent In the choir. Mrs, Castle
has been an extensive traveler through
old and new countries, and Is a most
interesting conversationaliast, having
seen much of the world, and gleaned
freely of its Intelligence. Mr. Castle's
father and mother were Jonathan and
Frances P. Castle, with whom he came
from Essex, Vit., In 1827. In 1832 Jona-
than and his son, Willlam B, estab-
lished the first lumber yard in thils
township.

Jonathan Castle had three daughters
—Frances, who married Robert Henry;
Sarah, Mr. Richard Field; and Mwary,
Mr. Lackwood,

The name of

KATE NEWELL DOGGET

stands as a beacon light among West
Side women. Her father and mother
brought her from Charlotte, Vit., In 1837,
They resided for 2 time on Clinton
street: her etepfather, 'Mr. Calvin Wal-
ler, taking charge of the elegant hotel,
“The Exchange.”

Kate inherited a devotion to study
and Iiterary pursults, and possessed
Tare executive ability. After her mar-
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riage with Mr. Willlam Doxget, s=he
lived in Chicago, and it iz said that the
women of that city owe more to her
than to any other one person. At this
time there was not an Insetitution of
learning in Chicago to which she did
not lend wvaluable ald. 8She founded
their well-known literary society, the
"Fortnightly.” Her Cleveland frlends
well remember her classie lecture on
“Aspasia,'” In this city. She was an
accomplished lingulet, and well versed
In the arts and sciences. She translat-
ed a work on art by Charles Blanc. The
Impetus she gave to woman culture
cannot be overestimated. Bhe dled in
Cuba, Havana.

Allee Beswick (Mrs. Danlel Cowle), of
Lancashire, England, settled in ©Ohio
City In 1840. Their son, Mr. John
Cowle, married Catherine Gillet, of Cob-
den, IIl, in 1847. Mrs. Cowle, a woman
of marked amiability and of a modest,
retiring disposition, was a member of
St. John's Church Missionary Soclety,
and a generous giver to its frequent
calls, ™Mr. Cowle s full of reminis-
cences, and remempers the old log
cabin, on the southweast corner of De-
troit and Pearl streets, devoted to
Whiglsm during the Harrison and Ty-
ler campaign.

Susan Tisdale, born and brought up
in Ohio City, married at flfteen Mr.
Henry Whitman, and llved on Detroit
road. She was a resolute character,
and =incere in her friendshlips.

Mrs. Sweat and Mrs. Caldwell were
two well-known neighbors, living on
the lower end of FPearl street, below
Detroit strest. "Mrs. Eweat was lively
and full of fun, fond of entertaining
her friends.

Miss Frances McHKay (Mrs. John
Degnon) received her early tralning in
New York city at the home of an aunt,
who lived in affluence and luxury. Hav-
Ing frequent acccesg to a fine library,
she imbibed an ardent love of books,
a taste which she also Inherited from
her father, who was a profound stu-
dent in Latin and Greel.

Familiar wlith astronomy, she could
with ease defilne the stars and constel-
lations. An authority In history, her
memory was never appealed to in vain.
She married Mr. John Degnon, went
to Hartford, Conn. removed to Ohio
City, and resided in a house corner of
Church and Hanover streets, whose
heavy beams and timbers atill defy the
ravages of time. Here in her large
kitchen, the wyoung people held their
merry-makings, and as the shades of
evening closed around them, and the
only light was that of spluttering tal-
low dips, they gathered around the
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great fireplace, the shining brass and-
ironae plled high with blazing logs, and
told weird tales of

GHOSTS AND GOREBLINS.

A devout lady of an unusually lovely
diapoalition was Lucy Fitch, daughter
of Rev, Ebin Fitch, president of Wil-
llams College. She married E=zeklel
Folaom, a prominent elder of the First
Presbyterian Church,

His brother, Gilman Folsom, mar-
ried Hadassah Ballard, from Vermont,
in 1834.

On July 4, 1837, took place the opening
of the famous hotel on Maln street,
known as the ‘‘Exchange.” A grand
ball was glven in its spacious salons,
at which Mr. and Mra. Folsom danced.
Nothing more elegant than this struc-
ture at that time could be found this
gide of New York city. Its entrance
and stairway were built of solild ma-
hogany. Another event which made It
for the Western Reserve a red letter, as
well as a sky rocket day, was the sall-
ing of a steamboat on the old riverbed,
the water being high.

Mre. Folgom having undergone a re-
ligious experience, danced no more;
#he became a falthful, consistent Chris-
tlan, zealous In good works. Some
yvears after the celebration, one of her
errands of mercy took her to the "Ex-
change," over which had come a sad
metamorphosie. Its former gplendor
had glven placed to wretched squalor;
over one hundred poor families here
abode, and the story goes that plgs
were quartered in the fourth and fifth
stories. So thick did this turbulent,
obstinate army become that a sort of
alllance was formed, and the landlord
found It Impossible to coliect his rent,
An agent was appointed, & belligerent
Engllshman, who met with better suc-
ceps, A gitroke of lightning which
atruck the tower put an end to the
trouble and dispersed the tenants, The
daughter of Mr. and Mrs. Gilman Fol-
som was Hadassah, who was the sec-
ond wife of Mr. W. H. Van Tine.

Mary Adamy (Mrs, Archibald Pow-
ell) and her husband and daughter,
Helen (Mras. Richard McKittrick), spent
four days In coming from Buffalo on
the old steamer Tnecle Sam In 1833,
They bought Lorenze Carter's farm,
near the Cuyahoga Furnace and es-
tablished a tavern or inn In the old
Tarmhouse. Helen picked blackberries
and huckleberries in the woods on De-
troit street. On the farm were bes-
hives, samokehouses, and other farm ap-

pliances.
‘Margaret Thirlwall (Mrs. TLowrle),

|

true sympathizer with every one ip
trouble; she was a lover of natyur
fond of birds and flowers, a true Chris.
tian, and a member of 8t. John's Epis-
copal Church for more than forty Years
Mr. and Mrs. Harding, of Philade].
phia, at first located in arren, wherg
they lived in a log house, adorned on
the inside with planed and fitted lum-
ber, & sale carpet (as It was called)
not the customary rag carpet, on the
floor. While there Mr. Harding made a,
trip to England, bringing home fine
china of the old willow ware pattern
three hundred years old. Their beaut|.
ful things were the envy and admira-
tion of their neighbors, who often
brought their friends to look at Mra,
Harding’s fine clothes: thelr nelghborly
feelings sometimes carrled them to
greater lengths than was desirable, and
at last she demurred, on belng asked
to lend her shoes to wear to the city.
Accustomed to luxurious llving in Phil-
adelphla, she found the life In these
rugged wilds very hard to endure, and
often cried for very forlornness. They
moved to Ohlo City. and located on the
southwest corner of Pearl and Lorain
streets, where now the bullding of the
West Side Banking Company stands,

Mr. and Mrs. Edgar Slaght came from
New York about 1830, and lived In the
first house bullt on Detrolt street. Mra,
Slaght was so fond of a water view
that a new home was bullt on Wash-
ington street, which at that time was
considered a very desirable locality,
commanding an extensive view of the
lake, whose broad expanse presented
an ever-shifting panorama of storm
and sunshine, of “ships that passed in
the night,"” or floated lazlly by In the
day. Here, as often before, human
foreslght erred, for what was then clear
perspectlive agalnst the blue horizon,
now presents an mtogether different
picture of thickly-set dwelllngs. Mra,
Slaght has been a devoted member of
the First Congregational Church from
its early beginning. In 1834 her hus-
band built the session house, then de-
:ﬁ’ted to the Presbyterian form of wor-

P.

Mrs. Branch's name belongs also to
the list of brave ploneer women., Mrs,
Canfield, wife of Dr. Canfleld, one of
the early preachers in the sesslon
house, whose excellent qualities had
won for her the love of a wide circle
of frlends, died, and the pession house
proving inadequate to hold the large
body of mourners, she was buried from
St. John's Epiecopal Church.

Mrs. William M. Burton, daughter of

who came from England in 1844, was a Bishop Soule,
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THE STATESMAN BISHOP,

" am he has been called, of the Methodist
urch South, was her husband's com-
~and solace durlng the short time
held the rector's position in St
hn's Eplscopal Church. He had the
aitive physique of the scholar, hav-
“gpent the greater part of hie life In
easor's chalr, and in the service
%erm University, at Middletown,
an. Becoming too dellcate for the
ged winters of the lake shore, he
gened to accept the charge of & par-
in Michigan. In a few years he
sed away: his widow returned to
= South, and lived to an advanced
e, His successor the Reverend Lewis
Burton, married the daughter of the
Jjate James Wallace, of Scotch-Irish de-
'i.gﬁiemt; gshe was born in Petersburg, O.,
received a liberal educatlon, and was
narried in 1841, In 1847 Rev. Lewls
urton took charge of St. John's
.~ Church. Through all his minlstry his
. wife was his faithful and eflicient
f*?ﬁﬁhmiun. ruling well her woman's
| kingdom. BShe found time, amid her
multitudinous cares, to participate di-
‘pectly in her husband's world, and
while devoted to the service of the
Hpigcopal ritual, an impromptu prayer,
¢h moved the hearts of her hearers,
me readily enough to her lips when
aglon required. She Is now active In
the Woman's Christlan Assoclation, and
helped In organizing and managing
‘many of the clty's charltles, She was
atrongly interested In the great tem-
perance movement which swept over
. the State, and made her Influence felt
| on the side of soberness and .purity.
 Her husband passed away In 1894,
"Their children are Mrs. Amelia Leslie,
_, 5., Elizabeth Backus, and -the Rt
" Rev. Lewls Burton, bishop of the
Hplscopal dlocese of Lexington, Ky.

 Her sisters are Mrs. Minerva Wet-
more and Mra. Eliza Jennings, the lat-
ter the beneficent founder of the Home
- for Incurables, on Detrolt street, which
" bears her name. This esteemed and
- tultivated lady added to the educa-
~Hon afforded by the achoola of this
Country the culture of forelgn travel.
- She felt deeply a sense of her respon-
sibility ag stewardess of large means,
‘ :"ﬁ!ﬂﬂh she used to some extent in the
. &ducation of young men and women;
% ny a man owes to her his start In
IBinesas, and even a first fallure did
always prevent another trial. By
- nerosity numerous churches were
. ted from hopeless debt. The
. Industrial Sohool and Farm, on Detroit
Btreet, are other monuments to her

4

thropy.

In 18540 Hanover street waa called
West street; Franklin avenue, Pros-
pect street, which continued until the
consolidation of Ohle Clty with Cleve-
land in 1854.

Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Prior's house
still remains on Duane street.

Mr. and Mrs. Lyman Beardaley and
Mr and Mrs. Charles Beardsiey built
housea on Clinton street, both of which
are yvet in good condition.

Joseph and Mrs. Sarah Johnson Pal-
mer lived first on Washington street,
later moved to Detroit street. Mr. Pal-
mer came In 1835 from Norwlch, Conn.
The good deacon was a noted philan-
thropist, and his house a shelter and
refuge for poor, colored fugltivea flee-
ing from the South, for whom he found
safe transportation to Canada. Thelr
daughter, Sarah, dled after reaching
maturity. Their only grandson, Ar-
thur Hubbell Palmer, is a professor In
Yale College, and resides In New Ha-
ven.

Mr. and Mrs, Thomas Whaley moved
to the West Side in 1844. Mr. Whaley
filled the position of englneer on the
Empire, the largest steamer at that
time on the great lakes, and bullt by
the Cuyahoga Furnace Company for
traffic between Buffalo and Chleago.
Mrs, Whaley was a faithful attendant
on the service of 8t. John'ms Church.
The one regret of her life was having
been born in Canada, under the British
Government. Her father was the flrst
doctor in Canada to Introduce Peru-
vian bark as a medicine. At the time
of the Revolutionary War he declined
to fight as he sald it was a foolish
thing for a handful of colonista to en-
gage In gso futile an undertaking against
s> powerful a country as Great Britaln.

Mrs. Elisha Sterling, whose husband
was at that tlme connected with the
Cuyahoga Furnace, was a refined, dig-
nified lady. conservative and aristo-
cratle.

Elizabeth Conklin (Mre. Thomas Mas-
ters), noted, as was alsc her husband,
for their pilety: it was thelr custom to
pray before daybreak, at noon, and at
night. This, however, as I8 sometimes
the case, did nmot interfere with their
practical affairs. ‘Thelir table was a
bountiful one, and Mra. Master's

SATT RIBING BREAD

had a well-merited reputation.

Mr. and Mrs. Ball's house on Frank-
line avenue is still a fine dwelling, later
occupled by Captaln Guyles, whosa
first wife, Ruby, was a ploneer. Mr.
Ball had several daughters, two of
whom, Eunice and Mary, both beautiful
and bright, dled In young womanhood.
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Jane C. Glidden (Mrs. Deacon Danlel
. Mallery), from Craftsbury, VL.,
came in 1857. Gentle and unobtrusive
in her disposition, she was well known
for the orderliness and scrupulous
neatness of her household.

Jane Lytle (Mrs, James Maguire),
when a little girl, when to school In
Vermont, moved to Cleveland in 1834,
and went to Miss Harrig' school on
Pearl] street, Mrs, Maguire is a much=
esteemed woman of quiet, domestic
tastes,

The same year, 1834, Emeline Hurl-
bturt (Mrs. Rufus Swift) came from
Chatham, Conn. Her fine sewing and
exquisite needlework, as well as her
sprightly and helpful presence, made
her a valuable aid in the frequent sew-
ing socleties of her church. Her only
daughter, Harrlet, married Milton C.
Canfield, and resides in the old home
on Clinton street.

Mrs, Willard was an estimable wo-
man who lived on Washington street,
as was also Mrs., Bowler, who llved on
Ann street, now called Dexter place In
honor of the Dexter family, who reside
there. On the corner of Franklin ave-
nue and the Circle 1lved Mrs. F. U. Mag-
ters, whose husband was at one time
Mayor of the city, Mra. Masters was
a graceful and attractive woman, with
finely-cultured taste and a love of
books. She dled, leaving young chlil-
dAren bereft of a mother's love and ten-
derness,

Margaret Southerland and her hus-
band, Samuel Holgate, brought thelr
daughter Julia, afterwards Mrs, John
Haver, from Milton, Vt., In 1834. Both
mother and daughter were devoted to
their home interests. Mrs. Haver now
lives on Liberty street with her wid-
owed dauvghter and her grandchildren,
Her watchful, ministering care will al-
wayvs bé to them a grateful remems-
brance.

The house In which lived Mrs. Na-
thanlel Bennett, No. 82 Clinton street,
was o hospitable one, which was the
scene of many pleasant reunlons,

Mrs. Tappan's husband, “"Major"” Tap-
pan, as he was called, was a popular
music teacher.

Another calllng not to be slightingly
passed over was that of merchant tal-
loring, In which Mr. Swafield was en-
gaged., His wife, Mrs, Swafield, went
from house to house making boys’
clothes, as was the custom then.

Mr. and Mrs. Viets brought consid-
érable means with them, with which
they started a store, but the settlers,
belng poor, were unable to purchase
freely, and the venture was an unfortu-
nate one,
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The Disciple Church had its small be.
ginnings like the others. In 1533 th,
pioneer preacher, William Hayden, wag
arked by O'Connor, A Néw CONvert, [jy.
ing two miles wesat of the Cuyahoga, 15
preach in the village 'down near the
river.” Hayden agreed If & congrega.
tion could be obtalned. At 10 o'clack
on a certain ‘Monday morning O'Connop
started out and canvasscd every house
Iin the communlity. Nearly every fam-
lly came. Mrs. Armon O'Connor and
Mrg. W. B. Storer were among the first
converts. In June, 1336, greater strides
were made, at which time, it Is sald,
the cause of infidelity as champloned
by Irad Kelley falled after four days of
debate. The Disciple Church was es
tablished in 1842, under the shadow aof
the New Disciple Church, Its stately
successor. The names of some of its
ploneer supporters are: Mrs. Jeptha E.
and Mrs. David W. Nickerson, Mra. .
Calkins, Mrs. Roderick and Mrs. J.
Calkins, Mrs. S. 8. Calkins, Mrs. Wil-
lHlam Clayton, Miss Emeline Merrick,
Mra, J. Comstock, Miss Pauline White,
Mrs. Daniel Tilden, Mra. Stillman, Mrs,
A. B. Dare, Mrs. T. Perry, Mra. Chester
Wright, and Miss Wright.

The first Presbyterlan Church of the
West Side commenced its public wor-
ship, December, 1834, In the brick school
house on Vermont street, Rev. Joseph
Keep addressing the aasembly. On De-
tember 29 a2 meeting for the election nf
ifficers was held at the residence of
Mrs. Charles Tavlor. on Detrait street.
During 1835 the ladiea of this church
were active In providing schools for
those whose parents could not afford to
send them to the private schools In the
village. In November, 1836, Rev. James
D. Pecands, with hls wife, accepted the
ministry of this church. He was an
earnest man, working and exhorting in
season and out of season, and woe be-
tide the woman who presumed tn at-
tend worship decked In more than the
ordinary hablliments of a proper Sun-
day attire. He never wavered In his
stern duty of calling her to acenunt or
of drawing attentlon to her ams, for In-
stance, "the woman over there with

FEATHERS IN HER BONNET."

Catherine Rennle marrisd Henry
Shanks at Black Roek, N. Y., In 1833
He came here In 1834 and bullt a house
In the woods., which {a still {n good con-
dition. now No. 249 Hanover street. The
followine year he was joined by his
wife. They possessed the firet canary
birds in this part of the country. and
for a long time ralsed the feathered
songsters for sale. Mr. Shanks was one
;r the projectors of the old Eagle foun-

TY.



‘A Scotch lassie was Ann Skirving, of
pundee, Scotland, who married Mr.
hn Beanson and salled across the wa-
traveling from New York clty
rough the wilderneas to Ohlo City.
hey went to board in the old MeLlsh
puse, on Pearl street, and finally set-
sf] In the flrat house built on Wood-
bine street.

" Mr. and Mrs, Blake and thelr daugh-
er Hebecea (Mrs. De Groat) located In
the village in 1824, traveling by ox-team
and canal-boat from Brattleboro, Vt.
“She 1s stlll an active, energetic woman,
Her father was the baby who was car-

Jjed over the Green Mountains by his
“mother, who, losing her way, stripped
herself of her garments to

= SAVE HER BOY

from the bitter cold. She was frozen to
| death. The babe lost some of his toes,
‘but lilved to be an old man and left
| many chilldren. The Incldent fur-
‘nished the theme for a poem famlllar
“to the achool children of a past genera-
“tlon. Mr, Blake was the first sexton of
Monroe Street Cemetery.
" Maria Haven (Mra, William Fuller)
récelved her education In Vermont.
- Mrs, Warburton, a finely educated
Irigsh lady, was a well-remembered
teacher of musie, faithful, and perse-
vering In her profession.
~ Other memorable names are Mrs. Sol-
“way, Mrs. Le Pelley, Mrs. John Doug-
lass, the Misses Cox, Mrs. Thomas Bur-
Ten (Jeanette Turner), Lydia Whitney,
from Connecticut; Miss Laura Hatha-
_way, a school teacher; Miss Craig, who
married Mr. Blush; Mr. and Mrs, Myers,
‘Mrs., Langhorn, Mr. and Mrs. Adams,
and Mr. and Mrs. Laphranier.
. In 1831 Mary Elizabeth Pritchard,
- when silx years of age, with her father
‘and mother, Erastus and Permelia
Pritchard, of Columbla, Loraln county,
‘#ettled on a farm on Detroit road, just
west of Gordon avenue. The house was
‘bullt of logs, and the blg, round boul--
der near the front door, on which Mary
and her little friends played tea party,
8till remains, and is likely to remain
Torever. She went to school in the first
brick school house, She married W, H.
Tuttle, son of Mr. and Mrs, Jesse Tut-
"ﬂﬂ-"l;hn Jcame in 1819, In her pﬂ‘t.}"-llzuon
urious wder horn made by her
father In llﬂp:o
__Strongsville recelved its name from
the family of Mr, J. H. Strong, who
Came to Ohlo City before 1844,
] other ploneer family by the name
“ Moses llved at the corner of Detroit
‘And Duane streets.
_ l.ilrl. 8. H. Crowl (Harriet Crabtree)
18 well remembered as a falithful mem-
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ber of the Franklin Methodlst Episco-
pal Church.

The beginning of the Methodlst
church on the West Side was in 1833,
when ten of the members of the soci-
ety who lived in the village met and
formed a class at the resldence of Na-
thaniel Burton, uncle of Iaaac, Syd-
ney, and Byron Burton, and Mrs. Chit-
tenden Lewis,

Burton's famlly conglated of his wife,
Lucy, his daughter Loulse, by a former
marriage, and his wife's daughter,
Barah B. Rice. The Conklin family fur-
nished four more members. Mother Sa-
lome Conklin, her daughter Elizabeth,
her son Joshua, and his wife Rachel,
‘Mr. and Mrs. Bristol, and John Smith,
whoe married Sarah Rice. The last-
mentioned ten constituted the charter
meémbers of the Methodlst Church.

SBarah Rice's gister, Lucy B., married
Willlam Burton, known as Squire Bur-
ton, who at one time kept the Pearl
Street House. Thelr daughter married
Captain I. A. Plerce; she Ils now liv-
ing on Prospect street, enterprising
and energetic, actively engaged Iin hos
pltal work. The house where the class
met was afterward occupied by Mr.
and Mrs. A. P. Turner.

In March, 1834, 'Mr. and Mrs. William
Warmington moved from the Hast Side
to a small dwelling house on Detroilt
street, near the corner of Pearl street.
Here, Father Conant preached the first
Methodist sermon on the West Side.

Father Reed changed the place of
worshlp toe the small brick house on
VYermont street. Other ploneer names
of the Methodlst Soclety are Mr. and
Mrs, Parmeter, Mr. and Mrse. Ambrose
Anthony, Mr. and Mrs, Diodate Clark,
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel Tyler, Mr, and
Mrs. Ezra Honeywell, Mr. and Mrs.
Harman Wlilecox.

The frame for the new <church was
prepared by Joseph Btorer, Sr., but
Diodate Clark persuaded them to bulld
one of brick. By November, 1836, the
walls were ready for the roof; a ge-
vere storm one night leveled them to
the ground. By the advice of Bamuel
Tyler and his noble wife, the walls
were rebuilt. In 1837 the basement was
finished. It was not until nine wyears
later that the dedlcatory sermon was
preached by Rev, Lorenzo Warner,

Mars and Katura Wagar and infant
aon, Adam, came to the Western Re-
serve from Farmington, W. Y., in an
ox cart In 1818. They brought a cow,
which was milked in the morning, the
milk put in the churn, and by mnight,
owing to the roughness of the roads
and the jolting of the cart, was churned
into butter. In 1820 they moved to the
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to East Rockport (now
H was cut on the trees to
mark the highway. Corduroy roads,
made of logs lald crosswise, were [n
vogue, Mr. Wagar was a Latin scholar
and a student. His children were
Adam, Israel D., Albert, Matilda, An-
na, and Francis, The last one still
lives In the old homestead. The chil-
dren remember opening the dopoor to
listen to the howling of the wolves., At
this time there were but two houses on
the West Side. Adam married Mar-
aret Kyle, of Kilbrldge, Scotland, and
gui]t a frame house in a clearing by the
old stage road. Thelr furnishings were
brought in an ox cart, Mrs. Wagar
walking, carrying

HER CHOICE CHINA,

which she brought from Scotland, Their
first dinner was cooked at the slde of
a atump.

The Nlcholsons were among the first
settlers, and had the same sturdy tralts
that characterized the other ploneers.

Governor Wood's family were promi-
nent at this early period.

In the fall of 1811 James Fish, his
wife, two children, Mrs. Stanton, his
wife's mother, and Moses Filsh, his
cousin, moved in an ox team to Ohlo
and stopped at Newburg. Brooklyn at
thia time was a wild forest full of the
red man, the township had been sur-
veved and run into quarter sections by
agenta who lived in Connecticut. James
and Mosed Fish thought they would
locok at these lands. James gelected a
good plece and Moses selected a gquar-
ter section. James bullt a log cabin
and his family moved into It, but, be-
coming frightened by Indians, went
back to Newburg. Other familles com-
ing, they moved again to Brooklyn.
Moses wrote to his brother Ebenezer,
in Connecticut, to come and take one-
half of hia land, which he did. A road
(now Denison avenue) was run from
Newburg to Rockport, which divided
the property of the Fishes. They buijlt
& log cabin, In which they lived till the
war of 1812, Ebenezer enlisted for six
monthe and came out with honors. Af-
terward Moses was drafted. His health
being poor, Ebeneger took his place and
served the remainder of the war. He
went back to Connecticut, married Miss
Johanna Stanton, a smart, worthy wo-
man, who, on hearing of his Ohio farm,
proposed moving there. Accordingly in
1818, with their two chlldren, Eliza and
Emlily (afterwards Mrs. Corbin and Mrs.
Booth), hls two brothers, and their fam-
llles came in & large wagon drawn by
two yoke of oxen. They all buillt and
lived In log cabins.

West BSide,
Lakewoaod).

Mrs. James Fish was the first whitg
woman to settle jn Brooklyn and hep
son, Isalah W. Fish, was the firgg
white child born there. She received op
this account a present of a silk dregs
from the Lord and Barber eatate,

Isajiah Fish married for hls first wife
Matilda Gates and for his second Mary
A. Moore.

Mrs. Asa Bralnerd's husaband bullt
in Brookiyn the first brick house and
first frame barn, and Mrs, Ozlas Brain-
erd's husband bullt the first brick house,
Mrs., Brainerd had four daughters.

At this period, with the exception of
one family by the name of Chapman,
Brooklyn was peopled exclusively with
Bralnerds and Fishes.

In 1834 our women were obliged to get
their grain ground at Newburg. The
same year Loco Foco matches were in-
troduced.

Two other children were born to Mr,
and Mrs, Ebenezer Fish, Johanna (now
Mrs. Fowls), and John Moses married
Miss Brainerd. They endured hardships
and discomforts long before enjoying
the ordinary pleasures of existence,
Fever and ague also added to the trials
of the first settlers. Ebenegzer waa nine-
ty-three when he died.

Mrs. Lydia Fish married Mr. Alex-
ander Ingham, and, with thelr son, set-
tled In Brooklyn; thelr house was the
first one in the place raised without
the aid of whisky.

Mrs, Ingham was gquiet and dignified,
rather formal in her manner, but cour-
teous to all, especially agreeable to
those who sought her in her home. Her
husband, a stickler for the old customs
of the service of his church, was vls-
ibly disturbed and annoved by the In-
novation, as he considered It, of a me-
lodeon for purposes of worehip. He,
however, at last became reconciled, hie
good sense prevalling,

In 1826 Ablgalil Fish (Mrs, Mlichael B.
Foster), her husband, and children, left
the old homestead at Groton. They pur-
sued the usual route to this place, and
settled In Brooklyn.

Mrs. Foster's father, a soldler of the
Revolution, was one of twenty-five that
survived the capture of the fort at
Stonington, Conn.

Mrs. Foster was of a happy soclal
dlsposition, a favorite with the young,
who called her Aunt Nabby. She was
a plcture of sweet content as she sat
in thelr midst of a winter evening
clicking her needless in front of the
great fire of logs, when was heard the
roasting of chestnuts, the popping of
corn, while at the same time the apples
and cider were going their merry round.

Her sister, Eunice Fish, who married
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Mr. John Boyden, came to Brooklyn in
1832, where, for half a century she was
witness to the great changes and mar-
velous improvements that were taking
alace. She was a woman of clear judg-
‘ment, with a cheerful disposition,
Though her spinning wheel and knit-
ting needles were seldom quiet, many
specimens of her needlework are treas-
ured up. While in her eightieth year
her letters were delightfully entertain-
ing, full of quaint sayings and pleasing
reminiscences. Her daughter, Mrs. Asa
Foote, still resides in Brooklyn. She at-
tended the old academy, of which she
e one of the most efficient teach-
H%ats:r Clark (Mrs. William Aiken) Is
a most companionable woman, bright
and intelligent, always ready with an
answer, quick In repartee,

‘Other noteworthy names are Mr, and
Mrs, James Sears, who came from Con-
necticut in 1817, also Mr. and Mrs, Pel-
ton, who owned a large farm In this

quarter.

‘Eveline Thankful Foster, afterwards
Mrs, Willlam Lord Foote, in 1826, at
the age of nine years, came from Gro-
ton, Conn., with her parents, Mr. and
Mrs, Michael B. Foster, and their ten
other children, to settle in Brooklyn.

Traveling in canvas-covered wagons,
drawn by stout oxen, stopping at night,

- cooking their supper, leaving blazing
fires to drive away prowling wolves
and bears, and a guard to look out for

» Indians, and sleeping on boughs of
trees, hastily cut for that purpose, they
arrived after a tedious journey of thir-
ty-three days.

BEveline and her sisters, Sally Eunice,
Nancy, and Matilda, were early taught
to card, spin, and weave, and became
expert in these them most necessary
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household duties. A skein of silk, yel-
low with age, is still witness of Eve-
{ine's skill in reeling from the cocoon,
her uncle being then interested in silk
culture. She attended school at the old
academy in Brooklyn, long taught Ly
Mr. Merrill, whose daughter married
Mr. Andrew Freeze, Cleveland's first
school superintendent.

After Eveline Foster’s marriage, she
moved to Ohio City, where she spend
many years of activity and usefulness.

In 1818 Sarah Fleming moved with her
father and mother from Trenton, N. J.,
to Zanesville, 0. In 1826 she married
George Storer, and made her wedding
trip on horseback to Brooklyn, settling
on the “ridge.” She was very domes-
tic, an excellent nurse, and ministered
to the sick for miles around; she was
a great reader, especially fond of his-
tory. She was a conslstent Christlan,
an ardent Methodist, the leading church
publications were well patronized by
her, She was a supporter of the Ladies’
Repository.

Her six children were Lydia Ann,
Sarah Jane, Willilam C., Charlotte May,
Mary Emily, and Emma Louls (Mrs.
Frederick Wirth); Charlotte married
George Gardiner,

Cemantha Stebbins and Caroline
Buxton were familiar names,

Miss Buxton taught in the Brooklyn
academy, and her father having been
unfortunate in business, her earnings
as teachers were devoted to the pur-
chage of a home for her family,

STELLA T. HATCH,
Chairman and Historian.
Committee—Miss Susie Foote, Mrs.
Charlotte A. Hatch, Mrs. Seth Sheldon,
Mre. James MecCrosky, Mrs. L. Las-
celles, Mrs. Jane Elliott Snow.




Pioneer Women of Cleveland - West Side,

Cuyahoga County

Last First Page Last First Page Last First Page
Adams Mrs. Henry 202 Brooks Susan 201 Clark Diodate 209
Adams Mr. & Mrs. 209 Brouwer |Maria 202 Clark Betsy 211
Adamy Mary 206 Burdick  [Mrs. 203 Clayton  [Mrs. William 208
Aiken Mrs. William 211 Burnham [Dr. & Mrs. Sayles | 201 comstock |Mrs. J. 208
Allen Mrs. Horace 203 Burren Mrs. Thomas 209 Conant Father 209
Anthony  |Mr. & Mrs. Ambrose| 209 Burrows [Mrs Francis A. 199 Conklin  |[Elizabeth 207
Backus Mrs. Elizabeth 207 Burton Mrs. William M. 206 Conklin  |Salome 209
Baldwin Mrs. Norman c. 204 Burton Reverend Lewis 207 Conklin Elizabeth 209
Ball Mr. & Mrs 207 Burton Tr. Rev. Lewis 207 Conklin  |Joshua 209
Ball Eunice 207 Burton Nathaniel 209 Conklin  |Rachel 209
Ball Mary 207 Burton Isaac 209 Connover |Ursula 201
Barber Josiah 197 Burton sydney 209 Cor Mrs. Ebin 202
Barber Epaphras 197 Burton Byron 209 Corbin Mrs. 210
Barber Sophia 197 Burton Lucy 209 Cowle Mrs. Daniel 205
Barber Jerusha 197 Burton Louise 209 Cowle Mr. John 205
Barber Harriet 197 Burton William (Squire) 209 Cox Misses 209
Barber Abigail 197 Buxton Daniel 202 Crabtree |Harriet 209
Barber Josiah 199 Buxton Miss Cordelia 202 Craig Miss 209
Barber Mrs. Epaphras 199 Buxton Eliza 203 Crosky Mrs. James 200
Barber Tootie 200 Buxton Caroline 211 Crowl Mrs. S. H. 209
Barnard Thankful 199 Caldwell |Mrs. 205 Dare Mrs. A. B. 208
Barrard Hadassah 206 Calkins Mrs G. 208 Davis Mrs. 202
Barstow Mr. & Mrs. Tildon 201 Calkins Mrs. J. 208 Davis Elise 202
Beanson  |Mr. John 209 Calkins Mrs. S. S. 208 Davis Helen 202
Beardsley |Mr. & Mrs. Lyman 207 Canfield |Mrs. 206 Davis Mr. Alfred 203
Beardsley |[Mr. & Mrs. Charles | 207 Canfield |Dr. 206 De Groat |Mrs. 209
Bennett Mr. Nathaniel 203 Canfield |Milton C. 208 Degnon  [Mrs. John 205
Bennett Mrs. Nathaniel 208 Cannon |[Mrs. R. A. 203 Degnon |Mr. John 205
Benton Miss Eliza 198 Carter Mrs. 202 Denison |Mrs. John B, 198
Beswick Alice 205 Carter Lorenzo 206 Denison |Mrs. Daniel 202
Beverlin Mr. John 204 Castle Mrs. Mary Newell 205 Dexter 208
Beverlin  |Julia 204 Castle William B. 205 Dixon Mrs. Thomas 204
Bigelow Lydia Elizabeth 198 Castle Jonathan 205 Dogget Kate Newell 205
Blake Mr. & Mrs. 209 Castle Frances P. 205 Dogget Mr. William 205
Blake Rebecca 209 Castle Frances 205 Douglass [Mrs. John 209
Blush Mr. 209 Castle Sarah 205 Dutton Mrs. C. F 201
Bonnell Mrs. 201 Castle Mary 205 Dyer Julia 198
Booth Mrs. 210 Chapman |George L. 200 Eddy Mrs. Frank 200
Bowler Mrs. 208 Chapman |Dr. Titus 201 Eldridge |Mrs. Barney 201
Boyden Mr. John 211 Chapman 210 Elliott Mrs. F. R. 205
Brainerd |Mrs. Asa 210 Chase Philander 197 Ellsworth |Mrs. Lemuel 201
Brainerd |Mrs. Ozias 210 Childs Mrs. Augustus E. 198 Field Mr. Richard 205
Branch Mrs. 206 Chollette |Amelia 204 Fish James 210
Bristol Mr. & Mrs. 209 Clark Mr. & Mrs. Diodate| 209 Fish Moses 210
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Fish Ebenezer 210 Guyles Ruby 207 | [Jones George Washington 201
Fish Eliza 210 Hale Henry 204 | |Jones Rosanna 201
Fish Emily 210 Hanna Mrs. M. A. 198 | [Jones Adah 201
Fish Mrs. James 210 Harding Mr. & Mrs 206 | |Jones Buell 201
Fish Isaiah W. 210 Harris Rosamond 199 | [Jones Mary 201
Fish Johanna 210 Harrison |General 200 | [Jones Helen 201
Fish John Moses 210 Hatch Mrs. Uriel C 198 | [Keep Rev. Joseph 208
Fish Mrs. Lydia 210 Hatch Stella T. 211 | |Kelley Irad 208
Fish Abigail 210 Hatch Mrs. Charlotte A. | 211 | |Kirtland Jared P. 200
Fish Eunice 210 Hathaway [Miss Luara 209 | [Krom Elizabeth 204
Fitch Lucy 206 Haven Maria 209 | |Kyle Margaret 210
Fitch Rev. Ebin 206 Haver Mrs. John 208 | |Lacelles Mrs. L. 211
Fleming Sarah 211 Hayden William 208 | |Langhorn |Mrs. 209
Folsom Ezekiel 206 Hendee Mrs. Celan 201 | |Laphranier |Mr. & Mrs. 209
Folsom Gilman 206 Henry Robert 205 | |Le Pelley |Mrs. 209
Folsom Hadassah 206 Herrick N. 201 | |Leslie Mrs. Amelia 207
Foot Mr. Horace 204 Herrick Mrs. 201 | |Lewis Mr. & Mrs. Sanford 201
Foote Mrs. Asa 211 Hill Dr. C. E. 203 | |Lewis Miss Chloe 202
Foote Mrs. William Lord 211 Hinsdale Mrs. B. A. 203 | |Lewis Mrs. Cynthia 202
Foote Miss susie 211 Hinsdale  |Proffessor 203 | |Lewis Mrs. Chittenden 209
Foster Mrs. Michael B. 210 Holgate Samuel 208 | |Lockwood [Mr. 205
Foster Eveline Thankful 211 Holgate Julia 208 | |Lord Samuel P. 197
Foster Sally Eunice 211 Holloway |Mrs. 203 | |Lord Sophia 197
Foster Nancy 211 Honeywell |Mr. & Mrs. Ezra 209 | |Lord George 199
Foster Matilda 211 Hopkins Sophia 205 | |Lord Hope 199
Foster Mr. & Mrs. Michael B. | 211 Hough Mrs. Addison 204 | |Lord Mr. & Mrs. Richard 199
Fouts 203 Hoyt Mr. & Mrs 201 | |Lowell Affa 202
Fowls Mrs 210 Hurd Thomas 199 | [Lowrie Mrs. Margaret 206
Fox Mr. & Mrs. Samuel 199 Hurd Miss Mary Eleanor| 204 | [Luffkin Mrs. Moses 202
Fox Mr. & Mrs. 201 Hurlburt  [Emeline 208 | |Lytle Jane 208
Freeze Mr. Andrew 211 Hurlbut Mrs. H. A. 199 | [Maguire Mrs. James 208
Fuller Mrs. William 209 Ingham Mr. Alexander 210 | |Marrery Mrs. Deacon Daniel N.| 208
Furgeson |Mrs. Julia Redington 202 Jackson Mrs. Morris 200 | |Marris Miss 198
Gardiner |George 211 Jackson Morris 200 | |Martin Mrs. John 203
Gates Matilda 210 Jackson Julia 200 | [Masters Mrs. Thomas 207
Gillet Catherine 205 Jackson Alice 200 | [Masters Mrs. F. U. 208
Glidden Jane C. 208 Jackson Miss Nancy 201 | |McCurdy |Mrs. William 198
Goodrich  |Ann 199 Jackson Morris 201 | |McdCrosky |Mrs. James 211
Greeley Horace 199 Jackson Tower 201 | |McDole Annie 202
Griffeth Mr. david 203 Jennings |Mrs. Eliza 207 | |McGregor |Mrs. A. M. 200
Griffeth Mary 203 Johnson Miss Jane 199 | [McGregor [Sophia 200
Griffeth John 203 Johnston |Jane 203 | |Mcllvane |Bishop 199
Griffeth Nathaniel 203 Jones Mrs. Lucinda 197 | |McKay Miss Frances 205
Guyles Captain 207 Jones Mrs. G. W. 201 | |McKittrick [Mrs. Richard 206
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McLish 209 Redington [Helen 202 | [Sheldon Mr. Seth H. 202
Merrell Charlotte 203 Reed Father 209 | [Sheldon Dr. Benjamin 203
Merrick Miss Emeline 208 Rennie Catherine 208 | [Sheldon Seth 203
Merrill Mr. 211 Rhodes Mrs. Daniel P. 198 | [Sheldon Miss Sarah 203
Moore Mary A. 210 Rhodes Augusta 198 | [Sheldon Mrs. Seth 211
Moses 209 Rhodes Robert 198 | [Shepard Phineas 199
Myers Mr. & Mrs. 209 Rhodes |[James 198 | [Shepard Phineas 199
Newton Mrs. Sophia 201 Rhodes Fannie 198 | [Shepard William 199
Newton Mary Sophia 201 Rhodes Mrs. Charles L. 204 | [Shephert Flora L. 200
Newton Mrs. W. H. 201 rhodes Catherine 204 | [Sims Captain & Mrs. Elias| 203
Nicholsons 210 Rhodes |Abbie 204 | [Skirving Ann 209
Nickerson |Mrs. Jephtha E. 208 Rice Sarah B. 209 | [Slaght Mr. & Mrs. Edgar 206
Nickerson [Mrs. Davie W. 208 Rice Sarah 209 | [Smith Mr. & Mrs. Anson 198
O'Connor_|Armon 208 Rice Lucy B. 209 | [Smith Cornelia 198
O'Connor _ |Mrs. Armon 208 Roderick |[Mrs. 208 | [Smith Virginia 198
Palmer Mrs. 204 Rogers Mrs. 201 | [Smith Georgianna 198
Palmer Mary Harriet 204 Row 201 | [Smith Estelle 198
Palmer Joseph 207 Russell Mrs. Robert 197 | [Smith Josephine 198
Palmer Mrs. Sarah Johnson | 207 Russell Sophia Lord 197 | [smith Deliverance 199
Palmer Sarah 207 Russell Charlotte Augusta| 197 | [Smith John 209
Palmer Arthur Hubbell 207 Russell Sophia L. 198 | [Snow Mrs. Jane Elliott 211
Parmeter |Mr. & Mrs 209 Russell Charlotte 198 | [Solway Mrs. 209
Pearson Jeannette 199 Russell Cornelius Lansing | 199 | [Soule Bishop 206
Pecands Rev. James d. 208 Russell Mrs. Richard 201 | [Southerland |Margaret 208
Peck Elihu 201 Sanford |Mrs. Nelson 202 | [Stanart Mr. Charles 204
Pelton Mrs. F. W. 198 Sanford  [Mr. Nelson 202 | [Stanart Needham & Naomi | 204
Pelton Mr. & Mrs. 211 Sanford |Mrs. Daniel 202 | [Standart Mrs. W. E. 200
Perry Mrs. T 208 Sargent |Jerusha T. 199 | [Standart Needham 201
Phelps Lydia 198 Sargent |Mrs. Levi 199 | [Standart Mrs. Stephen 202
Pierce Eunice Shepard 204 Sargent [Elizabeth H. 200 | [Standart Affa Lowell 202
Pierce Captain L. A. 209 Sargent [Julia 200 | [Standart Mrs. Needham 202
Platt Reverend William 201 Sargent  |Mrs. John H. 200 | [Stanton Mrs. 210
Pollock David 203 Sears Mr. & Mrs. James | 211 | [Stanton Miss Johanna 210
Powell Mrs. Archibald 206 Selden Mrs. Robert 200 | [Starkweather|Mrs. 203
Powell Helen 206 Selden Miss Susie 200 | |Stebbins Cemantha 211
Presley Mrs. George 201 Selden Julia 200 | [Stephen Mr & Mrs 201
Presley Maria 201 Selden Miss Rosamond 200 | |Stephen Nancy 201
Prior Mr. & Mrs. Joseph 207 Sessions |Miss Betsy 203 | [Stephen Eleanor 201
Pritchard |Mary Elizabeth 209 Seymour |Mrs. Belden 201 | |Sterling Mrs. Elisha 207
Pritchard |Erastus 209 Shanks Henry 208 | [Stillman Mrs. 208
Pritchard |Permelia 209 Shelden |Miss Ellen 203 | |[Storer Mrs. W. B. 208
Randall Mrs. Abigail Lord 199 Shelden |Anna 203 | [Storer George 211
Redington |Joseph 202 Shelden |Sarah 203 | [Storer Lydia 211
Redington |Eleanor 202 Sheldon |John 199 | |Storer Ann 211
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Storer Sarah Jane 211 Viets Mr. & Mrs. 208
Storer William C. 211 Wagar Mars 209
Storer Charlotte May 211 Wagar Katura 209
Storer Mary Emily 211 Wagar Adam 209
Storer Emma Louis 211 Wagar Adam 210
Storer, Sr. |Joseph 209 Wagar Israel D. 210
Strong Mr. J. H. 209 Wagar Albert 210
Swafield Mr. 208 Wagar Matilda 210
Swafield Mrs. 208 Wagar Anna 210
Sweat Mrs. 205 Wagar Francis 210
Swift Mrs. Rufus 208 Wallace James 207
Swift Harriet 208 Waller Mr. Calvin 205
Taintor Mrs. Jesse F. 204 Warburton Mrs. 209
Tappan Maria 203 Warmington |Mr. & Mrs. William 209
Tappan Mrs 208 Warner Rev. Lorenzo 209
Tappan "Major" 208 Waterman George 201
Taylor Charles 199 Webster Daniel 199
Taylor Susanna 201 Wetmore Mrs. Minerva 207
Taylor Mrs. Charles 201 Whaley Mr. & Mrs. Thomas 207
Taylor Dewitt clinton 202 White Miss Pauline 208
Taylor Mrs. Charles 208 Whitman Mr. Henry 205
Tenny Sarah Rhodilla 201 Whitney Lydia 209
Thirlwall Margaret 206 Wilbur Naomi 202
Tiebout Mrs. George 204 Wilcox Miss Gratia M. 204
Tiebout Margaret 204 Wilcox Josiah & Abigail 204
Tiebout Martha 204 Wilcox Mr. & Mrs. Harman 209
Tiebout Frances 204 Willard Mrs. 208
Tilden Mrs. Daniel 208 Wilson Mrs. Lucy 198
Tinker Mrs. Daniel 202 Wilson Mary 204
Tisdale Susan 205 Wilson Margaret 204
Turner Mr. Alvin 203 Wilson Mr. & Mrs. Ephraim 205
Turner Jeanette 209 Winslow Mrs. Charles 199
Turner Mr. & Mrs. A. P. 209 Winslow Kenelm 199
Tuttle w. H. 209 Winslow Lucy Ann 199
Tuttle Mr. & Mrs. Jesse 209 Wirth Mrs. Frederick 211
Tyler Mr. & Mrs. Samuel 209 Wood Governor 210
Tyler Samuel 209 Woodruff Mrs. 201
Van Tine Mr. & Mrs. William H. 203 Wright Mrs. Chester 208
VanTine Mr. W. H. 206 Wright Miss 208






